SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 13, 2017
9:04 a.m

9:04: 23 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop, Vice-Chair
Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Nat asha von | mhof

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donny O son

ALSO PRESENT

Chad Hutchinson, Staff, Senator John Coghill; Senator Ma
Costell o, Sponsor; Wston Eiler, Staff, Senator Costello;
Kat hie Wassernman, Executive Director, Alaska Minici pal
League, Juneau; M t chel Mat t hews, Seni or Oper ati ons
Manager , Uber Northwest, Juneau; Anna Latham Deputy
Director, Division of Insurance, Departnment of Comrerce,
Community and Econom c Devel opnent, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Col onel Robert Doehl, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnment of
Mlitary and Veterans Affairs; Jim Dodson, President,
Fai r banks Econom c¢ Devel opnent Corporation, Fairbanks; Jeff
Stepp, Staff, Myor's Ofice, Fairbanks North Star Borough,
Fai r banks; Christine Nel son, Di rector, Depart ment of
Communi ty Pl anni ng, Fai r banks North St ar Bor ough,
Fai rbanks; Lisa Tse, Uber Technology Inc., San Francisco;
Annabel Chang, Director, Public Policy, Lyft.

SUMVARY



SB 9 M LI TARY FACI LI TY ZONES

SB 9 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 14 TRANSPORTATI ON NETWORK COMPANI ES

SB 14 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sb9
SENATE BI LL NO. 9

"An Act relating to mlitary facility zones."

9:05:16 AM

Vice-Chair Bishop MOVED to ADOPT the proposed comittee
substitute for SB 9, Wrk Draft 30-LS0183\J (Shutts,
2/8/17). There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CHAD HUTCHI NSON, STAFF, SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, introduced
the bill.

9:06: 15 AM
AT EASE

9:08: 02 AM
RECONVENED

9: 09: 00 AM

M . Hut chi nson di scussed t he Power Poi nt , Conmittee
Substitute for Senat e Bill 9
By t he Senat e Fi nance Commi ttee
(CSSB 9)(FIN — “An Act Related to Mlitary Facility Zones;
and Providing for an Effective Date" (copy on file).

M. Hutchinson highlighted slide 2, "CSSB 9(FIN) Focuses on
Mlitary Facility Zones":

* Potentially inportant around the state. Especially in
communities with a “mlitary industry.”
e High degree of focus in Interior Al aska.
« Eielson Air Force Base
e Fort Wi nwight
* Clear Air Force Station

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 02/13/17 9:04 A M



* Fort Geely
e Mlitary Facility Zones help foster surrounding
i ndustry in the conmunity.

M. Hut chi nson addressed slide 3, "Planned Mlitary
Construction Projects in the Fairbanks Area.” The slide
represented the urgency and the context of the current
situation.

M. Hutchinson |ooked at slide 4, "Eielson F-35; Facility
Plan." The slide was a closer |look at the construction
proj ects.

9:13: 39 AM

M. Hutchinson highlighted slide 5, "Rem nder: VWhat Are
Mlitary Facility Zones?"

» Designated areas

* Established by the Departnent of Mlitary and
Vet erans’ Affairs (DWA)

e Closetoamlitary facility

e Wiere industrial and economc developnent directly

enhance the facility's ability to fulfill its mssion
(via public/private funding sources, credit, and
guar ant ee prograns).

e Currently, DWA considers a nunber of factors. One

factor includes review of the conprehensive plan of
the local nunicipality/borough
e The problen? Conprehensive plans take tine.
Meanwhile the mlitary construction w ndow is
short.

9:16: 22 AM

M. Hutchinson |ooked at slide 6, "Sinple Legislative
Solution — Sinple Fix":

1. The main focus of CSSB 9(FIN) is to allow a mlitary
facility zone to be inplenented after consideration of
a local zoning ordinance. The followi ng was added:
“or local zoning ordinances;” in AS 26.30.020(c).

2. Relieves the burden of the local comunity doing a
ti me-consum ng conprehensive plan. The opportunity is
now.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 02/13/17 9:04 A M



9:17:14 AM

M. Hutchinson highlighted slide 7, "Anything el se?"

* Yes.

* On February 2, 2017 the Senate Comunity and Regi ona
Affairs Comrmittee accepted an anendnent brought to
Senate nenbers by the Departnment of Mlitary and

Veterans’ Affairs (DWA). The anendnent received no
obj ecti on.

e The anmendnent added another |ayer of protection to the
DWA against civil liability. It nmakes it clear that
DWA cannot be held liable for civil damages for a
mlitary facility zone desi gnati on, based on

i naccurate or inconplete information provided by the
muni ci pal i ty/ borough

e Also added that the legislation would be effective
i mredi ately.

9:18: 07 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the state already received
mlitary construction noney. She queried the purpose of the
bill. M. Hutchinson replied that the bill allowed for the
use of grants and loans at low interest rates as it related
to construction projects around the mlitary installations.
He stressed that the bill affected the businesses that
wor ked on base, helped to reduce their interest rates. He
stressed that the low interest for residential construction
projects would be beneficial to many conpani es. He remarked
t hat the legislation also helped the supplenental
i ndustri es.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon requested a Sectional Analysis.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered what the bill would change, and
queried the ramfications of its passage such as its effect
on zoning. M. Hutchinson replied the bill maximzed the

benefit for construction entities that were hoping to take
advantage of low interest rates for some of the anticipated
construction projects around mlitary installation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether there were low rate
interest rate loans currently offered by the federal
government that required a conprehensive plan approach. M.
Hut chi nson responded that there was a variance. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 02/13/17 9:04 A M



explained that each state was different, and flexibility
related to mlitary facility zones.

Senat or von | nhof wondered who initiated the process. M.
Hut chi nson replied that the process began with the borough,
and its coordination wth Lockheed Martin. The application
cane from the borough, submitted to the Departnment of
Mlitary of Veterans Affairs, and upon approval create a
zone around the mlitary installation. The conpanies could
work with either Lockheed Martin or the Air Force and
submt for grants in ensuring that the mlitary m ssion
noves forward.

Senator von | nmhof surm sed that the borough designated the
land near the mlitary to create an opportunity. M.
Hut chi nson agr eed.

9:23: 32 AM

Senator Mcciche stated that the bill created flexibility
wi thin the process. M. Hutchinson agreed.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether there was a possibility
that the plan could be used in reverse. She shared that the
state |obbied the federal gover nnment to ensure a
conprehensive analysis on economc inpact should the
federal government close mlitary facilities. She wondered
whether the legislation wuld allow for the federa
government to go through the |ocal government for the sane
result. M. Hutchinson asked for nore information about the
guesti on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the bill allowed for a
bypass of the federal governnment to exam ne econom c i npact
when considering mlitary facility closures. M. Hutchinson
felt that that the bill would allow for a strong synergy
between all the governnents to support the wunderlying
mlitary m ssion.

Co- Chair Hof fman wondered how the |egislation would affect
construction conpanies outside of the mlitary zone. M.
Hut chi nson replied that any conpany coul d take advantage of
the program if it directly affected the mlitary m ssion.

Co-Chair Hoffman surmsed that the conpanies wthin the
zone would have a better financial position versus those

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 02/13/17 9:04 A M



outside of the zone. M. Hutchinson replied in the
affirmative.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the difference the original bill
and the commttee substitute. She also requested a
sectional anal ysis.

9:27: 54 AM

M. Hutchinson discussed the Sectional Analysis (copy on
file):

Section 1. Sinply adds the words “or l|ocal zoning
ordi nances” to Al aska Statute 26.30.020(c)(1).

| f added, the Depart nment of Mlitary and
Vet er ans’ Affairs ( DWA) has i ncreased
flexibility when considering a proposed mlitary
facility zone. The zone can be consistent wth
the | ocal zoning ordinance or the |ocal
conpr ehensi ve pl an.

Section 2: This section was proposed by DWA. The

| anguage ensures that the departnent will not be held
civilly liable for a mlitary facility zone
desi gnati on based on i naccurate or i nconpl ete

i nformati on provided by a munici pality/borough.

Section 3: Clarifies that this legislation is
effective i medi ately

Vice-Chair Bishop felt that the bill helped to neet the Ar
Force mission. He remarked that the Air Force hoped for
nore activity rel ated businesses for their service nenbers.

9:30: 15 AM
AT EASE

9: 30: 48 AM
RECONVENED

9:31:16 AM

COLONEL ROBERT DOEHL, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
M LI TARY AND VETERANS AFFAIRS (via teleconference), spoke
in support of the bill.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 02/13/17 9:04 A M



Co-Chair

9: 36: 50 AM
JIM DCODSON, PRESI DENT,
CORPORATI ON, FAI RBANKS (via

support of the |egislation.

MacKi nnon requested M. Doehl's witten testinony.

FAI RBANKS ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT
t el econference),

testified in

JEFF STEPP, STAFF, MAYOR S OFFICE, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR
BOROUGH, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in support
of the bill.

CHRI STI NE ~ NELSCN, Dl RECTCR, DEPARTMENT OF COVMUNITY
PLANNI NG  FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), spoked in support of the bill. She
expl ai ned the purpose of the bill.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

9:43: 09 AM

Vi ce-Chair Bishop discussed the fiscal note.

Senator Dunleavy queried the difference between the
mlitary legislation passed in a previous legislature. M.
Hut chi nson explained that the previous |egislation was
unwor kabl e because the conprehensive plans took to |ong. He
stated that the bill would ensure the sane objective
t hrough a zoni ng ordi nance.

Senator Dunleavy that the different between the 2012

| egi slation and the current
process. M.

SB 9 was HEARD
consi der ati on.

and HELD

9:46:19 AM
AT EASE

9:48: 21 AM
RECONVENED

#sb14
SENATE BI LL NO 14

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7

bill,
Hut chi nson agr eed.

was that it expedited the

in commttee for further

02/13/17 9: 04 A M



"An Act relating to transportation network conpanies
and transportati on network conmpany drivers.”

9:48: 48 AM

SENATOR M A COSTELLO, SPONSCR, presented the context of the
bill. She stressed that Alaska was in a recession and
experiencing job losses. She felt that it was inportant to
diversify the econony, and pass |legislation that would
create jobs for i ndi vi dual s. She stated that t he
| egislation was transportation services network conpanies
legislation <called the "Let's R de Alaska Act." The
conpanies were platforns that connected riders wth
drivers. The bill defined and clarified that the drivers
wer e i ndependent contractors and exenpted the drivers from
the Wdrkers Conpensation Act, and other individuals who
were exenpted from that act . She shared that the
| egi sl ature had surveyed Al askans, and 30 percent of people
said that they wanted to diversify the econony. She felt
that the bill allowed for a job opportunity for a stay-at-
home nom or active duty mlitary nmenber.

9:52:16 AM

VWESTON ElI LER, STAFF, SENATOR COSTELLO, explained the bill.

10: 01: 22 AM

M. Eiler discussed the Sectional Analysis (copy on file):

Section 1. Describes the legislative intent for the
bill.

Section 2. Amends AS 21.96 by adding a new section, AS
21.96.018, relating to transportation network conpany
i nsurance provisions. This section allows insurers who
wite autonobile insurance in the state to exclude
coverage while a driver is logged onto the digital
network of a transportation network conpany or while a
driver provides a prearranged ride. However, nothing
in the section precludes an insurer from providing
coverage for the personal vehicle of transportation
net wor k conpany dri er.

Section 3. Amends AS  23. 30.230(a) to exclude

transportation network conmpany drivers from the Al aska
Wor ker's Conpensati on Act.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 02/13/17 9:04 A M



Section 4. Anends AS 23.30.230(c) by adding the
definitions for "digital network," prearranged ride,"
and "transportation network conpany driver."

Section 5. Amends AS 28 by adding chapter 23, titled
"Transportati on Network Conpanies and Driver."

AS 28.23.005. Provides the DCCED adninister the
chapter.

AS  28.23.010. Provi des t hat transportation
network conpany or driver is not a conmon carrier
and may not provide taxicab or for-hire services
and that they may not be required to register as
a commercial or for-hire vehicle.

AS 28.23.020. Related to fares collected by
transportati on network conpani es for services.

AS 28.23.030. Governs identification required for
by transportation network vehicles and drivers.

AS 28.23.040. Requires electronic receipts.

10: 05: 46 AM

Co- Chair Hoffrman wondered how the legislation interfaced
with comunities that regulated cabs. M. Eiler responded
that the bill wuld set one set policy for rideshare
drivers. He explained that many of the services crossed
muni ci palities. He remarked that the platform could operate
statewi de, and provide clarity for drivers that may nove or
travel around the state.

Co-Chair Hoffman surmised that the Uber driver could not
drop the rider off in a different municipality. M. Eiler
di sagreed. He stressed that the bill did not inpact the
muni ci pality's authority to regul ate taxicabs.

Co-Chair Hoffman queried the paranmeters of an Uber driver
within a community that regulated the licenses. M. Eiler
responded that the taxicab regulations and Uber were two
very different things.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 02/13/17 9:04 A M



Co-Chair Hoffrman remarked that nany communities regul ated
t he nunber of licenses. He wondered what would occur if the
| egi sl ation were passed. He asked if an Uper driver could
operate in a community wthout that comunity's |icense.
M. Eiler replied in the affirmative. He stated that the
| egi sl ation conplemented the possible reformation in sone
comunities for taxicabs. He stressed that it would be a
different service than a taxicab. The legislation related
to connecting drivers wth riders.

Co-Chair WMacKi nnon wondered whether the taxicab drivers
could drive for the network providers. M. Eiler replied in
the affirmati ve.

Senat or von | mhof wondered whet her the legislation
addressed taxicab legislation. M. Eiler replied that the
| egi sl ation did not address taxi regul ations.

10: 10: 35 AM

Vi ce-Chair Bishop queried the inplenentation and protocol
for the zero-tolerance drug and al cohol possible. M. Eiler
replied that the |anguage was broad in the |egislation, but
deferred to the conpani es' stringent set of policies.

Senator M cciche surmsed that a typical Uber driver would
have normal insurance coverage for their own vehicle, that
the provider did not need to carry under the normal policy
while logged onto a digital network. He noted that there
was a separate policy between driving alone and carrying a
passenger. He wondered whether the nore stringent policy
mrrored a taxicab requirenent. M. Eiler agreed to provide
that information. He agreed that there were different
i nsurance coverages throughout the course of a rideshare
ride.

Senator Mcciche wanted to know whether the insurance
mrrored that of taxicabs.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered whether the bill required that
transportation network conpanies and its drivers to
purchase commercial insurance. M. Eiler replied in the

affirmative. He noted that there was an exclusion provision
was there for the master policies that Uber, Lyft, and
ot her conpani es hel d.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 02/13/17 9:04 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether the |egislation protected
lien holding institutions in the event of damages or | oss.
M. Eler replied in the affirmative.

Co-Chair McKi nnon remarked that the current conversation
was not a debate, rather an attenpt to understand the bill.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop queried the driver payback or fee to the
conpany. M. Eiler replied that an Uber driver would pay 25
cents for every dollar for using the service.

10: 15: 36 AM

KATH E WASSERMAN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MJNI Cl PAL
LEAGUE, JUNEAU, addressed concern wth Section 7. She
stated that there was a concern about renoving regulation
from municipalities, and only be given to the state. She
understood that there would be confusion when crossing
jurisdictions, but it could also be confusing to have two
types of transportation providers in the nunicipality that
were regul ated separately. She stated that there had never
been a large issue related to taxicabs crossing between
jurisdictions. She urged the conmttee to renove Section 7.
She felt that it should be a local control issue. She
remarked that Section 10 of the Constitution gave |ocal
control to municipalities.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the myors would
support not having a transportation network at all. M.
Wasserman replied that she did not know the answer to that
guesti on.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered if there was a concern about
low ridership in the state in its entirety. M. Wsserman
agreed to address that issue with the mayors. She did not
know how state regul ati on would increase ridership.

10: 18: 53 AM

M TCHEL MATTHEWS, SENI OR  OPERATI ONS MANACER, UBER
NORTHWEST, JUNEAU, spoke in support of the legislation. He
stated that over 20,000 Al askans had downl oaded the Uber
app, and over 60,000 people had opened the app looking to
connect with a ride in Alaska. He felt that the |egislation
provi ded the appropriate nunber of safeguards for consuners
while allowing for a predictable, <clear, and concise
oper at i onal envi r onnent for drivers and riders. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 02/13/17 9:04 A M



described the Uber service, which provided a digital
network to connect riders with drivers.

10: 24: 37 AM

Co- Chai r Hof fman queried the inplenentation of t he
businesses in rural areas of the state. M. Mtthews
wondered if Co-Chair Hoffrman was referring to a driver

Co-Chair Hoffman asked how the conpany would start in
Unal aska. M. Matthews stated that he did not know the
licensing requirenents for an individual business in
Al aska.

Co- Chair Hof fman wondered how an Uber conpany would start
in the state. M. Mtthews replied that the bill allowed
for Uber to operate in the state. He explained that a
driver woul d downl oad the app and operate fromthere.

Co-Chair Hof fman wondered how the structure was started in
a comunity.

10: 26: 26 AM
AT EASE

10: 27: 23 AM
RECONVENED

10: 27: 31 AM

M. Mitthews shared that Uber was a digital platform so
the driver was responsible for setting up their conpany
within the comunity.

Senator Dunl eavy queried the classifications of individuals
who would be prohibited from the platform M. Mtthews
responded that driver rnust submt their full nane, date of
birth, social security nunber, valid driver's license,
valid vehicle registration, and insurance. Those docunents
were verified for validity. The individuals were screened
using a social security trace and a conprehensive
background check for offenses related to al cohol. He stated
that there was al so an evaluation against the National Sex
O fender registry, and those individuals would be excluded
from operating on the app.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 02/13/17 9:04 A M



Senator von Inmhof asked whether there was a periodic
background check. M. Mtthews replied that the internal
process involved an annual background check. He stated that
the conpliance at Uber depended on the various expiration
dates on the docunents.

Vice-Chair Bishop asked for nore information about drug
testing. He wondered whether there was random drug testing.
M. Matthews replied that Uber did not do drug testing. He
explained that a rider mght notify Uber about a suspicious
driver, and then Uber would investigate that conplaint.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered whet her the background checks had
been "ti ghtened"” since Septenber 2016.

10: 31: 15 AM

LISA TSE, UBER TECHNOLOGY |INC., SAN FRANCISCO (via
tel econference), introduced herself.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered whether the issues in San
Francisco and Los Angeles had been addressed since
Sept enber 2016. Ms. Tse replied that California had changed
its background check requirenents.

Ms. Tse restated that in Septenber 2016 the California
| egislature had adopted new legislation related to

background checks. The bill confirmed that crim nal
background checks conducted by conmercial services were
perm ssible. It also nodified sone of the adjudication

criteria. She stated that, as of January 1, 2017, Uber had
i npl enented processes in California to ensure conpliance.

Senator Dunleavy surmsed that the issue of those who had
bypassed the background checks at LAX was addressed. Ms.
Tse replied that she was not famliar with that issue, and
agreed to provide further information.

Senator Dunleavy stressed that the issue was in the news,
so he wanted to know what had changed in the background
checks protocol .

10: 33: 56 AM

ANNABEL CHANG, DI RECTOR, PUBLI C  PQOLI CY, LYFT (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the legislation. She
stated the nunmber one priority at Lyft was the safety of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 02/13/17 9:04 A M



its users. She stated that Lyft had national crimnal
background checks, a notor vehicle record check, and
ni net een- poi nt vehicle inspection. She stated Lyft provided
consuners Wi th new | evel s of t ranspar ency and
accountability. She shared that every Lyft ride was tracked
via GPS; and passengers could see a driver picture, user
rating of the driver, license plate, and make and nodel of
the vehicle. The drivers also received a photo and nanme of
the passenger. She stated that the app allowed to share
real time route information with others, providing for an
additional |evel of security.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

10: 38: 04 AM

Vi ce- Chair Bishop discussed the fiscal notes.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon surm sed that there was only an initial
request for insurance.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop continued to discuss the fiscal notes.

Vi ce-Chair Bishop requested a "scrub"” of the vehicle pool
conputers, office panels, and furniture.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon  wondered  whet her there was new
requirenents in other states for a network system

10: 44: 39 AM

ANNA LATHAM  DEPUTY DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF | NSURANCE
DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE, COWVMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT,
JUNEAU, explained that prior to the conmmttee substitute
the division had submtted a zero fiscal note. She stated
that the new version would put admnistration of the
| egi sl ati on under the Departnent of Commerce, Conmunity and
Econom ¢ Devel opment (DCCED), which would require the
creation of two new positions. She stated that the
| egislation prohibited municipalities from regulation, so
the regul ation woul d be solely on the state.

Senat or Dunl eavy surm sed that there would be a cost to the
state. Ms. Lathamreplied in the affirmative.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered whether the cost would be offset
by fees collected by the conpanies. Ms. Latham replied that

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 02/13/17 9:04 A M



the reason for general fund and not receipts was because
there was not a mechanism to collect funds for
adm ni stration of the program

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that she planned to reconmend
zeroing the fiscal note.

Senator M cci che wondered how Uber nmde its revenue.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that Uber made 25 percent of each
dol | ar against the driver's revenue.

Senator Mcciche felt that the cost would be handled |ike
any other license in the state.

10: 48: 01 AM

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered whether there could be multiple
passengers in one ride. M. Mitthews responded that there
were opportunities to connect individuals who may not know
each other through the route of a trip.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked whether individual passengers nay
not know each other. M. Matthews replied in the
affirmati ve.

Co- Chair Hoffman surm sed that the parent conpanies did not
operate in Al aska. Co-Chair McKi nnon agreed.

Co- Chair Hof f man expressed concern that that the 25 percent
of the revenue would be | eaving the state.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon di scussed conmittee business.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wi shed a happy birthday to her grandson,
Mason.

SB 14 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 51: 04 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:51 a.m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 02/13/17 9:04 A M



